
Chester County Council Meeting 

1 | P a g e  
 

R. Carlisle Roddey Government Building 
1476 J A Cochran Bypass | Chester, SC 29706 

Monday, July 7, 2025 | 6:00 PM 
 

AGENDA 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER 

 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE AND INVOCATION 

 

3. Recognition of Midlands Deputy Coroner of the Year for South Carolina 

Terry Tinker, Coroner 

 
4. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

a) June 23, 2025 County Council Meeting Minutes 
 

5. CITIZEN’S COMMENTS 

 
6. PUBLIC HEARING 

 

7. ORDINANCES | RESOLUTIONS | PROCLAMATIONS 

 

a) Proclamation honoring Terri Zion for 50 years of service to Chester County Probate Court 
 

b) Resolution 2025-16 Authorizing the disposition of certain real or personal property; and 

Providing for other related matters. 

 
8. ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT 

 

9. OLD BUSINESS 
 

a) 3rd Reading of CCMA25-17 GFI Partners requests Tax Map #097-00-00-030-000 (83.02 acres) 

located off Cedarhurst Road, Chester, SC 29706 to be rezoned from Limited Industrial District 
(ID-2) to General Industrial District (ID-3). The Planning Commission voted 4-0 to approve. 

 

10. NEW BUSINESS 

 
a) Consideration of Stanton Subdivision Bond and Standby Irrevocable Letter of Credit - Phase 1 

 



 

2 | P a g e  
 

b) Public Works Department Update  
Devon Bagley, Public Works Director  

 

11. BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS 
 

12. EXECUTIVE SESSION 

 

a) Discussion of matters relating to the proposed location, expansion, or the provision of 

services encouraging location or expansion of industries or other businesses in the area 

served by the public body – P2529 

 

b) Discussion of matters relating to the proposed location, expansion, or the provision of 

services encouraging location or expansion of industries or other businesses in the area 

served by the public body – P2548 

 

c) Personnel matter regarding Purchasing Director 

 

13. ACTIONS FOLLOWING EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 

a) Action taken regarding Project P2529 

 
b) Action taken regarding Project P2548 

 

c) Action taken regarding personnel matter 

 

14.  COUNCIL COMMENTS  
 

15. ADJOURN 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Pursuant to the Freedom of Information Act, the Chester News & Reporter, The Herald in Rock Hill, SC, WSOC-TV, Channel 9 Eyewitness News, the Mfg. Housing Institute of SC, 
WRHI Radio Station, C&N2 News, WCNC News and Capitol Consultants were notified, and a notice was posted on the bulletin board at the Chester County Government Building 
twenty-four hours prior to the meeting.  

 
Guidelines for Addressing Council 

Citizens Comments: 
Each citizen will be limited to three minutes.  

Public Hearings:  
Each speaker will be limited to three minutes.  

When introduced:  
Approach the podium, state your name and address.  
Speak loudly and clearly, making sure that the microphone is not obstructed.  
Do not address the audience – direct all comments to Council.  
Do not approach the Council table unless directed.  

 Anyone addressing Council will be called out of order if you:  
Use profanity.  
Stray from the subject.  
Make comments personally attacking an individual member of Council.  



Chester County Council Meeting 

1 | P a g e  
 

R. Carlisle Roddey Government Building 
1476 J A Cochran Bypass | Chester, SC 29706 

Monday, June 23, 2025 | 6:00 PM 
 

MINUTES 
Present: Chairman Pete Wilson, Vice Chair Erin Mosley, Councilman Bobby Raines, Councilman John Agee, 
Councilman William Killian (6:13pm arrival), Councilman Corey Guy (virtual-intermittent/executive session arrival), 
County Administrator Brian Hester, County Attorney Nicole Workman, Clerk to Council Kristie Donaldson 

1. CALL TO ORDER 
Chairman Wilson called the meeting to order at 6:02pm and declared a quorum of council present. 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE AND INVOCATION 
The allegiance was recited and invocation given by Chairman Wilson. 

3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

a) June 2, 2025 Council Workshop Minutes 
Councilman Raines motioned to approve, seconded by Vice Chair Mosley. Vote 4-0 to approve. 

b) June 9, 2025 County Council Meeting Minutes 
Vice Chair Mosley motioned to approve, seconded by Councilman Raines. Vote 4-0 to approve. 

4. CITIZEN’S COMMENTS 
John Massey of 171 E Lacy Street addressed Council concerning the Mount Hebron African American Cemetery. He 
asked that the county cemetery committee to take the lead in maintaining the historic site and requested road 

clearing and funding support from the county council. 

5. PUBLIC HEARING 

Chairman Wilson opened the Public Hearing and stated that no one had signed up to speak. The Public Hearing 

was closed with no speakers. 

a) Ordinance 2025-12 Authorizing, pursuant to Title 12, Chapter 44 of the Code of Laws of South 

Carolina 1976, as amended, the execution and delivery of a fee-in-lieu of ad valorem taxes 

agreement by and between Chester County, South Carolina, and Chester PV1, LLC, acting for 

itself, one or more current or future affiliates and other project companies (collectively, 

“company”); providing for a fee-in-lieu of ad valorem taxes incentives; modifying a joint 

county industrial and business park of Chester and York counties so as to enlarge the park; the 

provision of special source revenue credits; and other related matters. 

 

6. ORDINANCES | RESOLUTIONS | PROCLAMATIONS 
 

a) 3rd Reading of Ordinance 2025-12  

Authorizing, pursuant to Title 12, Chapter 44 of the Code of Laws of South Carolina 1976, as 

amended, the execution and delivery of a fee-in-lieu of ad valorem taxes agreement by and 
between Chester County, South Carolina, and Chester PV1, LLC, acting for itself, one or more 

current or future affiliates and other project companies (collectively, “company”); providing 

for a fee-in-lieu of ad valorem taxes incentives; modifying a joint county industrial and 



 

2 | P a g e  
 

business park of Chester and York counties so as to enlarge the park; the provision of special 
source revenue credits; and other related matters. 
Councilman Raines motioned to approve, seconded by Vice Chair Mosley. Vote 4-0 to approve. 

b) 1st Reading of Ordinance 2025-13 (Title Only)  

Approving the execution and delivery of a project agreement between the County and Project 

Eureka Mills; and providing for other related matters. 
Vice Chair Mosley motioned to approve, seconded by Councilman Agee. Vote 4-0 to approve. 

c) Resolution 2025-13 Identifying the capital projects as part of a program of general obligation 
borrowing for calendar year 2025; updating the list of capital projects related to prior general 

obligation borrowings for calendar years 2022-2024; allocating amounts from the capital 

project funds; and providing for other related matters. 
Treasurer Tommy Darby explained Resolution 2025-13, which authorized the county to borrow funds for 
capital projects. He detailed a total project fund of $2,244,302.80, noting they would use $244,302.80 from 
prior completed bond projects and $200,000 from the capital reserve fund to offset costs. He highlighted 

that this was part of a program the county had been implementing since 2016, using a level millage to 

fund debt service. 
Vice Chair Mosley motioned to approve, seconded by Councilman Raines. Vote 5-0 to approve. 

d) Resolution 2025-14 Providing for changes to the county employee /personnel handbook 

relating to a new tuition reimbursement policy; and providing for other related matters. 
Administrator Hester presented a new tuition reimbursement policy for county employees. The policy 
required employees to be full-time for at least 12 months and take job-related courses at accredited 

institutions. Reimbursement would be at the state rate, with 100% reimbursement per credit hour a 
grade ‘A’, 75% for a ‘B’, and 50% for a grade of ‘C.’ Administrator Hester also explained that employees 

would need to repay the funds if they left voluntarily within 24 months of receiving the reimbursement. 

Councilman Raines motioned to approve, seconded by Vice Chair Mosley. Vote 5-0 to approve. 

7. ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT 
Administrator Hester introduced Morgan McDougald Shirley as the county’s first Communications Officer, 
highlighting her status as a lifelong Chester native with extensive marketing experience. He also shared an 

update on former Councilman Branham, reporting on a recent visit where Mr. Branham sent greetings to the 
council and expressed hope of returning to work. Administrator Hester also reported that Ward Road has been 

completed and expressed gratitude to the crew for their efforts. 

8. OLD BUSINESS 

 

9. NEW BUSINESS 
 

a) Gateway to Chester County: Visitor & Veterans History Center 

Britt Stoudenmire, Chester County Tourism 
Britt Stoudenmire presented the Gateway to Chester County Veterans History Center project. He outlined 

the project's aim to transform the gateway into an immersive veterans and battlefields discovery hub, 
featuring multimedia exhibits and artifacts. Mr. Stoudenmire highlighted the potential economic impact, 

estimating 10,000 annual visitors and $390,000 in local economic injections. He stated that the project 
aims to be completed by the end of 2026, coinciding with South Carolina's 250th anniversary. 

b) SC Parks Recreation and Tourism’s ‘Undiscovered SC’ Grant Match Approval 
Administrator Hester explained the financials for the Veterans History Center project. He noted the local 
A-tax fund had a balance of $587,000, with $41,253 already allocated to the project. He proposed using 
an additional $58,747 from the fund to provide the $100,000 matching funds required for the grant. 



 

3 | P a g e  
 

Administrator Hester emphasized that HW Designs would perform the project work, and all costs were 
expected to be grant-eligible. 

Vice Chair Mosley motioned to approve the Undiscovered SC grant match up to $100,000, seconded by 

Councilman Raines. Vote 5-0 to approve. 

c) Information Technology Department Update 

David Schuelke, IT Director  
Director Schuelke provided an IT department update, highlighting that his two-person team handles 
about seven to eight tickets daily with an average of a four-hour resolution time. He discussed ongoing 

projects including website development (70% complete), Toshiba printer deployment, and contract 
reviews. Completed projects included the county council chamber upgrade with new digital boards and 

monitors, Paycor payroll system rollout, and Samsara fleet management implementation. Director 
Schuelke also noted they've been actively involved in cybersecurity groups and achieved $80,000 in 

contract savings. 
10. BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS 

 

11. EXECUTIVE SESSION 
Vice Chair Mosley motioned to enter executive session, seconded by Councilman Raines. Vote 5-0 to enter 

executive session. 
a) Discussion of matters relating to the proposed location, expansion, or the provision of 

services encouraging location or expansion of industries or other businesses in the area 

served by the public body – P2485 

b) Legal advice concerning municipality annexation 

c) Discussion of appointment of a person to a public body – Capital Project Sales Tax 

Commission 

12. ACTIONS FOLLOWING EXECUTIVE SESSION 
Councilman Raines motioned to return to regular session, seconded by Vice Chair Mosley. Vote 6-0 to return to 
regular session. 

a) Action taken regarding Project P2485 
Chairman Wilson stated this item was taken as information only. 

b) Action taken regarding municipality annexation 
Chairman Wilson stated this item was taken as information only. 

c) Action taken regarding Capital Project Sales Tax Commission appointment 
Vice Chair Mosley motioned to approve a resolution to include the City of Chester selections of Susan 
Kovas, Ms. Kovas’ appointments of Eddie Railey and Ginger Sharpe to be on the Capital Project Sales Tax 
Commission and on behalf of the county: Melvin Jackson, Steve Bishop, and Pam Temple. Seconded by 
Councilman Raines. Vote 6-0 to approve. 

13.  COUNCIL COMMENTS  
Councilman Agee stated he received a nice card from the family of Councilman Mike Vaughn. Vice Chair 
Mosley wished Councilman Killian a happy early birthday. Councilman Agee mentioned the repair of 
Charlie Barber’s road—Lynn Road. Vice Chair Mosley also wished Nicole a happy early birthday. 
Councilman Killian stated he would be having a 60th birthday party at the memorial building on July 5th and 
invited all of council to attend. 

14. ADJOURN 

Vice Chair Mosley motioned to adjourn, seconded by Councilman Killian. Vote 6-0 to adjourn. 
 
Time of adjournment: 7:58pm 
Kristie Donaldson, Clerk to Council 



STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA  )  

)  PROCLAMATION 

CHESTER COUNTY    )  

PROCLAMATION HONORING JUDGE TERRI BOYD ZION FOR 50 YEARS OF 

DISTINGUISHED SERVICE TO CHESTER COUNTY 

WHEREAS, on July 1, 1975, Terri Boyd Zion began her remarkable career in public service with 

the Chester County Probate Court under the leadership of Probate Judge E.K. Hardin, marking the 

beginning of a legacy defined by dedication, compassion, and unwavering commitment to probate 

matters; 

WHEREAS, Judge Zion was appointed Deputy Probate Judge in 1991, faithfully serving alongside 

the late Honorable Lois H. Roddey, and continued to uphold the dignity and integrity of the Court;  

WHEREAS, in 2018, Judge Zion was elected Probate Judge for Chester County and assumed office 

on January 1, 2019, bringing with her decades of experience, a deep knowledge of probate law, and a 

steadfast devotion to the citizens of Chester County; 

WHEREAS, Judge Zion is an active and proud member of the South Carolina Probate Judges 

Association, regularly attending conferences to ensure that Chester County remains informed of the 

latest legal developments pertaining to commitment proceedings, estate administration, and the care 

of incapacitated individuals; 

WHEREAS, throughout her career, Judge Zion has overseen countless estate matters, issued over 

1,400 marriage licenses, and generously shared her expertise by hosting Continuing Legal Education 

(CLE) training for her peers and colleagues; 

WHEREAS, now in her second term as Probate Judge, Judge Zion continues to serve with integrity, 

compassion, and an unyielding dedication to the citizens of Chester County, providing guidance and 

empathy during some of life’s most difficult and emotional moments; 

WHEREAS, for fifty years and counting, Judge Terri Boyd Zion has exemplified the highest 

standards of public service, earning the respect, admiration, and gratitude of the entire community; 

NOW, THEREFORE, be it resolved that I, Chairman Pete Wilson, on behalf of the Chester County 

Council do hereby honor and recognize the Honorable Judge Terri Boyd Zion for her 50 years of 

exceptional service to Chester County and extend our deepest appreciation for her enduring 

commitment to the administration of the Probate Court, compassion for others, and the well-being of 

our citizens. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and 

caused the Seal of Chester County to be fixed this 7th day of 

July, in the Year of our Lord, Two Thousand, Twenty-Five. 

 

 

Pete Wilson, Chairman 

Chester County Council  

ATTEST: 

 

 

Kristie Donaldson 

Clerk to Council  



SOUTH CAROLINA  ) RESOLUTION 2025-16 OF  

     ) CHESTER COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA 

CHESTER COUNTY  )    

 

AUTHORIZING THE DISPOSITION OF CERTAIN REAL OR PERSONAL 

PROPERTY; AND PROVIDING FOR OTHER RELATED MATTERS. 

 

WHEREAS, South Carolina Code Annotated section 4-9-30(2) authorizes Chester County 

(“County”) to sell or otherwise dispose of real or personal property; and  

WHEREAS, the County Council for Chester County, South Carolina, as the County’s governing 

body has determined that it is in the best interest of the County and its citizens to demolish, the 

item of property listed in Exhibit A, which is attached to and incorporated in this Resolution by 

reference; 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL THAT THE 

COUNTY AUTHORIZED THE DEMOLITION OF PROPERTY AS DESCRIBED IN 

EXHIBIT A. 

 And, it is further resolved that the County Administrator, and/or his designee (each, an 

“Authorized Official”), is authorized to prepare the property and any reasonably necessary and 

prudent documents for the demolition of real or personal property in this State. 

RESOLVED: July 7, 2025   

      CHESTER COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA 

 

      ___________________________________ 

      Pete Wilson 

      Chairman, County Council 

[SEAL] 

Attest: 

 

______________________________ 
Kristie Donaldson 

Clerk to County Council 
 

[ONE EXHIBIT FOLLOWS] 

 

 



 

EXHIBIT A 

PROPERTY DESCRIPTION 

 

Department 

 

Address 

 

Tax Map # 

 

 

Description 

 
Chester County   103 McAliley Street 

 Chester, SC 29706 

201-10-03-017-000 Demolition of brick house & haul 

off all debris  

 

 

 

























































PREPARED BY: CARLOS LEE RUANO, P.E.
Carlos@LWEngineer.com
704-895-8484

Latham-Walters Engineer, Inc.
16507-A Northcross Lane

Huntersville, NC 28078

STANTON SUBDIVISION PHASE-1, MAP-1
RICHBURG, CHESTER COUNTY, SC
BOND ESTIMATE FOR REMAINING INFRASTRUCTURE

Date: 6/9/2025

DESCRIPTION QNTY UNIT UNIT PRICE EXTENDED

Street Trees located at lot 88 EA 300.00$            26,400.00$         
5' Sidewalk located at lot 14295 SF 7.00$                100,065.00$       

DR Horton SUBTOTAL 126,465.00$       
50% 63,232.50$         

TOTAL 189,697.50$       







APPENDIX A 

TO 

BANK OZK 

STANDBY IRREVOCABLE LETTER OF CREDIT NO. - 291620000159 

********************************************************************************* 

July __, 2025 

SIGHT DRAFT 

DRAWN UNDER STANDBY IRREVOCABLE LETTER OF CREDIT NO. 291620000159 

Bank OZK, an Arkansas banking corporation 

4200 Park Road 

Charlotte, North Carolina 28209 

Attn: Al Grygiel, EVP 

Email: alfons.grygiel@ozk.com 

Date: [month] [day], 20[] 

Drawn Under: Bank OZK, an Arkansas banking corporation Standby Irrevocable Letter of Credit No. 

291620000159, dated July 30, 2025, issued for the account of HC Stanton I, LLC, 1616 Cleveland Avenue, 

Charlotte, North Carolina 28203 (“Letter of Credit”). 

At sight, pay to the order of: Chester County, South Carolina, a political subdivision of the State of 

South Carolina (“Beneficiary”), by wire transfer of immediately available funds to: 

[Name of Beneficiary’s Bank]  

[Account No.: _____] 

[Add other transfer/deposit details] 

The amount of [][] and [][]/100 U.S. Dollars (U.S.$[][]) [or, the total balance remaining available under] of 

the Letter of Credit. 

This Sight Draft has been duly executed by the undersigned, an authorized agent and signatory of 

Beneficiary, whose signature constitutes an endorsement. 

CHESTER COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA, 

as Beneficiary 

        

By: [] 

Its: Authorized Agent 



PREPARED BY: CARLOS LEE RUANO, P.E.
Carlos@LWEngineer.com
704-895-8484

Latham-Walters Engineer, Inc.
16507-A Northcross Lane

Huntersville, NC 28078

STANTON SUBDIVISION PHASE-1, MAP-1
RICHBURG, CHESTER COUNTY, SC
BOND ESTIMATE FOR REMAINING INFRASTRUCTURE

Date: 6/16/2025

DESCRIPTION QNTY UNIT UNIT PRICE EXTENDED
1.5" Final Surface (Map-1) 15962 SY 13.45$              214,688.90$       
Street Trees 140 EA 300.00$            42,000.00$         
5' Sidewalk (Stanton Commons) 26700 SF 7.00$                186,900.00$       
Ada Ramps 10 EA 2,026.50$         20,265.00$         
Dry Pond Conversion-1 1 LS 95,000.00$      95,000.00$         
Stop Post & Sign 4 EA 727.10$            2,908.40$            

HC STANTON I, LLC SUBTOTAL 561,762.30$       
50% $280,881.15

TOTAL 842,643.45$    



   

    

   

   

     

                

              

                  

                

         

 

  

     






